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The Learning Partnership Acudemies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report
For the Yeor Ended 31 August 2024

The Trustees present their onnual report together with the financiol statements and auditors’ report of the charitoble
company for the year 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024. The annwuai report serves the purposes of both a Trustees’
report and a Directors’ report under company law.

Since 1 September 2023, following o merger with The Learning For Life Academes Trust, the academy trust operates 9
primary schools, 4 secondary schools, a studio schoo! and o university technical coliege in Cheshire East and North
Staffordshire. its academies have a combined pupil capacity of 8,136 and had a rolf of 6,933 in the school census in
October 2024,

Structure, governance and management

Q. Constitution

The academy trust is a charitable compaeny limited by guarantee ond an exempt charity.

The charitable company's Trust deed is the primary governing decument of the academy trust.

The Trustees of The Learning Partnership Academies Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the
purposes ¢f company law.

The charitable company is known as The Learning Partnership Academies Trust.

Details of the Trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved are included in the
Reference and administrative details on page 1.

b. Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the event
of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year ofter they cease to be a member, such amount as
may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities controcted before they ceased to be a member.

¢. Trustees’ indemnities

The cost of this insurance is included in the total insurance cost reported by the Company. The Trust has jeined the
Government's risk protection arrangements (RPA). This provides cover up to £10,000,000 in any one membership year
in respect of Directors' and Governors' liability and provides unlimited cover In respect of actual clieged breaches of
professional duty.

d. Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

Members of the Company are independent from the charitoble Trustees cnd Company Directors. Directors are
appointed by a resolution of Directors. The Academy Trust Board has standing Committees in each Academy known os
Local Governing Boards (LGBs). These operate under a Scheme of Delegation which is reviewed and approved by the
Boord. Local governors are appointed in cccordance with the Scheme of Delegation to be responsible for the offairs of
each school or college and the management of these under the terms of the Scheme of Delegation clong with senior
staff.
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The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Structure, governance and management (continued)

e. Policies adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

When d new Trustee is appointed the Chalr of the Trust carries out Induction training. As port of this training a selection
of key papers ore reviewed os weil 0s ¢ briefing on the current business and issues of major importance. All Trustees
are aole to take part in training activities. The accdemy trust is a member of the National Governance Association
(NGA) which provides training oppertunities. Trust Board Awoy Days are held to develop strotegy and additional
Governance training is arranged where necessary

f. Organisational structure

The Board of Trustees is the regulatory authority of the Trust and os such is responsible for setting the strategic
direction, operational priorities and policy ot a corporate level across the Trust The Trustees approve d Scheme of
Delegation, which covers key functions and leveis of responsibility for Trustees and Local Governors in terms of
Governance and levels of responsibility for senior stoff in terms of Leadership and monagement. The remit of the Board
is to ensure effective leadership and management across the Trust. It is therefore responsible for cllocating resources
by approving an annual budget plan, monitoring the use of these resources and rmaking decisions about the use of
copital and revenue by setting the generai strategy and direction of travel for the Trust.

Local Governing Boards are responsible for advising and assisting in the formulation of genercl policies concernad with
the standards of high quality teaching: review and report on the curriculum offered at the respective scheools with
reference to national and tocal requirements; monitor and review the progress of students in terms of academic
achievements, welfare, attendonce, punctuality and behavicur benchmarked against natienal and local performance
and te prepare written documents reporting the obove while considering recommendations made by the Headteacher
and Senior Leadership Team of that school; to actively promote the work of their school within the community; and
responding to external feedback from national and local bodies to continuously improve the welfare and educationct
offering of the school and its Trust.

The Chief Executive Is authorised to incur expenditure within the approved budget and the gppointment of staff without
further authorisation from the Board. The management structure within each schoot consists of a senior leadership
team, which is led by the Headteacher ang usually includes Deputies and Assistants. The Senior Leadership Team (SL.T)
is responsible for the day to doy operation of each school, in particular organising the teaching staff, curriculum,
facilities ond welfare ond behaviour of students.

The Directors met 4 times between 1 September 2023 and 31 August 2024 as o full Trustee Bouard, and received reports
on finance and strategic and oparational maiters. Sub Committees met regularly throughout the year.
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The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report {(continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Structure, governance and management (continued)

g. Arrangements for setting pay ond remuneration of key monagement personnel

The parformance management of oll senlor staff is based on agreed objectives and is conducted by Trustees with the
aid of consultants where apprepriote, Remuneration decisions are made in fine with poy policies.

The School Teachers' Pay and Conditions Document outlines the performonce management process and remuneragtion
for the CEO, DCEO (Education) headteachers and teachers, The provisicns in the Support Staff Pay Policy are applicable
to the DCEQ (Operations) with benchmarking against local and national norms,

The CEO's pay is determined by the Pay Review Panet (Chair and Vice Chair) and assigned to this purpose by the Trust,
The Pay Review Panel will ensure that the process of determining the remunerction of the CEO is fair and transparent.

All pay has been benchmarked ogainst similar sized crganisations and is kept under review to match local recruitment
and retention requirements,

h. Trade union facility time

Relevant union officicls

Number of employees who were relevant union officials during the year 7
Fuli-time equivalent employee number

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time Number of
employees
0% 7
1%-50% -
51%-9%% -
100% -
Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time £000

Total cost of facility time
Totcl pay bilk 29,917
Percentage of total pay bill spent on faciity time - %

Paid trade union activities

Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of total paid facility time hours - %
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The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report {continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Structure, governance and management (continued)

i. Related parties and other connected charities and arganisations

The Trust works with a range of local soft federations of scheols, ot both g primary and secondory level, as well os with
other multt acodemy trusts, charities, and the local authorities in which the Trust's schoals cre situated.

j. Engagement with employees (including disabled persons)

Employees hove been consulted on issues of concern to them by means of regular consultctive committee and stoff
meetings and have been kept iInformed on specific matters directly by management. The academy trust carries out exit
interviews for ail staff leaving the organisation ond has adopted o procedure of upward feedback for senior
management and the Trustees.

The Trust has implemented a number of detailled policies in relation to all aspects of personne! matters including:
* Hedalth & safety policy

+ Wwellbeing Policy

Full details of these policies are available from the academy trust's offices,

k. Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in o business relationship with the academy trust

whilst having due regard to value for money, the Trust endeavours to support local businesses, allowing schocls to
select locol suppliers of goods and services, building positive relationships with these businesses and supporting the
iocal economy. The vast mojerity of suppliers are paid within payment terms, and small businesses and sole traders are
frequently paid more guickly than this.

The majority of the Trust's customers are parents, taking advantage of catering, leisure facilities, wrap around care and
nursery care. The Trust's schools offer competitive rates for these services.

The Trust is actively engoged with a range of local community and business groups, ond these groups are actively
involved in supporting the Trust's schools through careers fairs, work placements, and other community engagement
activifies.
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The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report {continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Objectives and activities

a. Objects and aims

To advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, in particular by establishing, maintaining, carrying
on, managing and developing schools (“the mainstream Academies”) offering a broad and batanced  curriculum, or
educational institutions which are principally concernad with providing full time or port time education for children of
compulsory school age who, by reason of illness, exclusion from school or otherwise, may not for any period receive
sultable education unless alternative provision is made for them (“"the clternative provision Academies”) or 16 to 19
Accdemies offering o curriculum cppropriote to the needs of its students ("the 16 10 19 Acadernies™ or schools specially

organised to moke special educational provisicn for pupils with Special Educational Needs ("the Special Academies”).

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Compeny has adopted o scheme of delegation. This scheme,
emongst other things, specifies the basis for admitting students to each school location.

b. Objectives, strategies and activities

The Trust believes in allowing each school to retain its distinctive and successful ethas whilst also being able 1o support
the ambition of individual schoals, help children to reach their potential and benefit from the greoter resources thot
partnership within the trust brings.

Our key vision and values are:

Qur Vision

We aspire to transform communities through education

Qur Mission

We strive to deliver exceptionat education in all our schools

Our Vaiues

we value our people, their passion, in delivering exceptional performance.

These vision and value statements inform the Trust's strotegic and operational planning and direction.

¢. Pubilic benefit

In setting our objectives ond planning our activities, the Trustees hove carefully considered the Charity Commission's
general guidance on public benefit.
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The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continuved)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Strategic report
Achievements and performance

The key achievements of the year related te supporting the trust's young people, and n particular successfully
preparing them for their formal examinations.

During the year four schools were subject to Ofsted inspection, including Daven Primary Scheol, Shavington Primary
School, and Wheelock Primary School. Of particulor note wos the outcome ot The Qoks Academy, which cchieved a
Geod judgement for the first time in its histary. This result was particularly grotifying, as the school hag originally been
rebrokered inte a predecesser trust of TLP following repeated Special Measures inadequate judgements.

Another key development was the conversion and integration of Dove Bank Primary School into the trust In January
2024, enhancing the trust’s educational footprint in Staffordshire and enabling strong collaboration between this school
and the trust's other Staffordshire-based schoaol, Castle Primary School.

In the area of governance, during the year d review was undertaken, and o programme of enhancements identified,
focusing on training, targeted recruitment, and improved communication between tiers of governance. The guality of
the trust's governance professional was aiso recognised ot the National Governance Association annual awords.

in school improvement, all schools received quaolity ossurance visits, safeguarding reviews, and supplementary reviews
where required. The Trust developed o series of subject networks to promote consistently high standards in core
subjects, and this has since expanded further into safeguarding and SEND. A Trust approach to pedagogy has alse
been established, based on the latest research and consistent with the proctises promoted within the DIE's Early Careers
Framework and new National Professiona! Qualificotion training modules. During the summer term the trust olso
strengthened its school improvement offer considerably with the addition of o DCEO (kducation) and Director of
Primary.

Operationally, cll scheols continue to work to aligned financial and human rescurces policies and procedures, and
further alignment has taken place in arecs such as marketing, estates and faciliies management. This year the trust
has also increcsed its strategic focus on staff wellbeing and subscribes to The Education Staff Welibeing Charter.
Finally, significant work has been undertaken to integrate digital support and delivery, to facilitate closer working ceress
the trust.

a. Key performance indicators

The Trustees have evalucted the financiol health of the Trust on @ regular basis vio the Board and Finance and Staffing
Sub Committee reports. The CEQ reports on schoc! and Trust performance to each Trust Board meeting.

The principal key performances indicators used in a financial context are net current assets and net operational
surplus/(deficit) (Le. excluding statutory adjustments for LGPS pension charge adjustments, capital grants and fixed
assets charge (depreciation)).
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The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continved)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Strategic report {(continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)
b. Going concern

After moking appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that The Learning Partnership
Academies Trust (TLP} has adequate resources to continug In operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this
reason they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financiol statements. Further details regarding
the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the accounting policies,

c. Promoting the success of the company

Trustees recognise the need to act in ¢ way most likely to promote the success of the company, and in doing so have
due regard to the following:

. the likely consequences of any dedision in the fong term

. the interests of the company’s employees

. the need to foster the company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others

. the impact of the company’'s operations on the community and the environmertt

. the desirability of the compony maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct
. the need to act fairly as between members of the company.

Page &
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The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Compuany Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Strategic report (continuved)

Financiai review

The Learning Partnership has generoted an operational deficit in year of £1,687k. Operationat deficlt excludes capital
income, depreciation charge and FR$102 pension adjustments. The table below shows the Impact on the financial
statements following statutory adjustments for LGPS pension chorge adjustments, capital grants and fixed assets
charge (depreciation).

Year ended 31 Year endad 31
Operational Statutory August 2024 August 2023
£'000 £7600 £603 £'000
income
Transfers in on conversion - 1338 1,338 -
Transfer from existing academy tust - 15,276 19,276 -
GAG 37,980 - 37580 27417
Pupit Premium 1,588 - 1,588 1,049
Cther DFE / ESFA grants 3183 - 3183 1055
invesiment income 105 - 105 88
Teaching scheal income 84 - 84 59
Cther government grants 2,998 - 2598 1480
Other trading activiies 1223 - 1,223 13
Capital granis - 1979 1,979 3.718
Donations 77 19 96 77
Cther income 1222 - 1222 1152
48,460 22,612 71,073 36,518
Expenditure
Staff costs (40343) 226 (39917 (26,707
Mon-pay expenditure {10,004) {1385 (101D {6,758)
Depraciation - (3,067 (5067 01,768)
{50,147 (2,979 {53,126) {35.23%)
Net income/{expenditure) {1687} 19,633 17,947 1,285
Transferred to capital (13863 1386 - -
Actuarial gain/(loss) on LGPS - 10m 101 2512
Pension surpius not recagnised - (178) 78 -
Nef movement in funds for the year (2075 24,852 18,780 2,597

The operating deficit, and net negative movement in funds, has been based on strategic decisions to invest trust
reserves in underperforming schocls, support capital priorities to cddress school improvement and welfare concerns
within certain schosls, and to ensure sufficient centrel capacity to support all scheols effectively.

The Trust's financial pesition at the end of the ocademic year, split by school, is cutiined below. This reflects the net
current asset position of the trust (excluding capital funding debtors), and excludes fixed assets and pension deficits,
as these gre less relevant to the routine financial management of the trust.
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The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Black Firs Primary Schoot

Caostle Primary School

Cheshire Studic School
Congleton High School

Egerton Primary School
Knutsford Acodemy

Sir Williom Stonier Schoo!

The Ocks Academy

Crewe Engineering & Design UTC
Leightor Academy

Wwistoston Church Lane Acaderny
Shavington Primary School
Wheselock Primary School

Daven Primary Schoo!

Dove Bank Primary Schogl

Central services

Total before fixed gsset funds ond pension reserve
Restricted fixed qsset fund

Pension reserve

Total

2024 2023
£000 £000
(50) 90
9 40
210 157
(276) 156
(50) 42
1,851 2,052
(880) Q77)
(103) 42
(345) (215)
418 -
(35 -
m -
135 .
77 .
m -
(56) (&1
1,187 2,026
87,427 68,405
(1.897) (2,454)
86,717 £7.937

The most significant events in the year contributing to the trust's financial position and performance were the following:

» A strategic decision to invest significant additional revenue reserves in Sir William Stenier School, through additional
teaching staff recruitment and deployment, additicnal leadership support, and additional specialist SEND support
o Significant capital investment at Wistaston Church Lane Academy to support the development of a nursery

provision at this academy

¢ A short term structural operating deficit at Congleton High Schoof suffered due 1o a dip in pupil numbers.

¢ Lagged funding challenges at Crewe Engineering and Design UTC, as the college continues to expand rapidiy.
«  More medest lagged funding chatlenges at The Oaks Academy, which clso continues to expand

Poge 1
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The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report {continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

The Trust's principal risk and uncertainty, and thus the factor most likely to affect the Trust's financial performance and
position moving forward, is inked to o potential stabilisation or contraction in pupll numbers, given the trust has
several undersubscribed schools,

The Trust seeks to manage this risk through the preparation and monitoring of medium to long term pupil number
projections, pro active student recruitment, and reviews of staffing profiles and efficiency to ensure school structures
align 1o existing pupil numbers whiist allowing for future growth or contraction. The Trust also seeks to ensure o
healthy reserves position 1o insulate schools against any short term fall in pupil numbers,

At the balance sheet date the trust had a reasonobly rebust reserves position, holding approximately 3% of annual GAG
income in resarve. The trust is working to ensure all schools hold approximate 5% in reserve, and the trust has
identified some target schools who will require edditional support ond intervention from the trust in order to address
their historical reserves position moving forward,

a. Reserves policy

The Trust has o policy to maintain sufficient reserves to enable it to operate effactively The levels of reserves are
reviewed by trustees regularly. The reserves policy provides o framework for future strategic planning and decision
making.

Reserves held in excess of the target will be reviewed by The Learning Partnership Academies Trust (TLF) (formerly The
Learning Alliance) on a regulor basis and on appropriate range of options will be considered which might include
releasing the funds into the revenue budget in furtheronce of the TLP's objectives, assigning funds to appropriate
designated reserves as may be determined by TLP. or investing the funds to generate further income to allow
expansion of TLP's work.

The movement of funds to and from the reserves identified (other than movements from restricted to unrestricted)
above will be at the discretion of TLP, or the appropriate sub commitiee where delegated autharity has been provided
by the Board of Directors, subject to the restrictions which will remain ottached to restricted funds (revenue and capital)
and their use. The movement of funds from restricted to unrestricted must be subject to obtaining appropriate consent
from the originol donor of the funds,

b. Investment potlicy

The investment policy governs the investment strategy of the academuy trust. The management of charitable funds and
investments comgply with regulations in force and the Charity Commission. The trustee of charitable funds is the trust
which is monaged by its Board of Directors and Local Governing Bodies. Therefors, there s a sole corporate
body/trustee with responsibility for managing ond administering the assets of the choritable funds and investments.
The investment objectives are to;

e [Ensure that funds which the trust does not immediately need to cover anticipated expenditure are invested in such
a way as to maximise income but without risk,

o Achieve along term real rate of return to provide a source of copital to meet beneficiary ond operational needs

s Provide an income to the trust to help maintain its operational effectiveness in the short term.
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The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

¢. Principal risks ond uncertainties

The principal risk identified is the potential for o reduction in future income. The accdemy trust aims to increase
reserves so as 1o mitigate this risk.

The key uncertainty is the impact of changes to Government Poficy on the funding of Acodemies in the current
economic climate. The lagged funding mechanism creates risks due to the increasing student numbers within the Trust.

The Trust's Audit and Risk Committee meets three times o year. At each meeting they raview the most significant risks
identified, any risks that have materialised and action to mitigate them,

Fundraising

The trust undertakes fundraising to support its charitable activities. Ali fundraising is in agccordance with Charity
Commission guidance and the restrictiens on charging for services applicable to the education sector. The trust does
not engage in any form of "cold calling” or unduly intrusive or persistence fundraising approaches, nor does the irust
apply any pressure on potential doners in order to secure donations.
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The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)

For the Yeor Ended 31 August 2024

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

The academy trust's greenhouse gas emissions and energy consumption for the year are:

GAS {Stope 1)
Kty

kW {Gross O - natural gas

kg L0224 018315
g {02 (18282
kg Crid 080025
kg N2O 0.060040

GAS OIL {Scope 1)

LHres

g Ld2e 2 I5857
kg {02 2. 72417
kg {Hd 000381
kg Nag G031558
ELECTRICITY {Scope 2)
Kwh

kg CO2e 0.21232
kg {02 G.Z1218
kg {134 G.GB0RD
kg N2O 000137

Businass Miles {Scope 3)
Py

Total
6,508 600

1,192,117
1,183,504
1,627

451

35,245

108,260
106,910
110
1,240

Total
2,978,216

£12,365
£25,202
2,383
4,080

Total
6,582

Business travel - land  Howsr rmadiem can

LA samen

kg CO2e 0.271%7
kp (02 020935
kp {H4 500011
kg N3O ERLAPRTE

Total Matric Tonnes CO2e
P s

Tonnes {07e pa? pupil

Metric Ton

113232
1,185.80
163
065

108.26
10631
.41
124

#etriz Ton

ah 2

Pl G

O IRY
% L R W
(SR R ad]

(5]

Maztric Ton

1.78
1.377
0.00
.42

193453

S544

8.29
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The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Yecr Ended 31 August 2024

Plans for future periods
The trust will continue 1o pursue growth where this complements and supports its core educationad aims.

In addition to this, the Multi Acaderny Trust will continue to strive for high academic standards and build upon the
successes of the previous year, providing targeted support to individual schools based on their particular requirements.

Disclosure of information to auditors

Insofar as the Trustees are aware:

. there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's cuditors are unoware, and
. that Trustees have taken all steps that they cught to have taken to make themsefves aware of any refevant cudit
information and to establish that the auditors are oware of that information.

The Trustees' Report, incorporating a strategic report, was opproved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the
company directors, on 12 December 2024 and signed on its behalf by:

ESigned by:
ASCLIZE3E3A0439..
D Wootton

Chair of Trustees
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The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Governance Statement

Scope of responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that The Learning Partnership Academies Trust
has an effective and oppropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstaterment or ioss.

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken gccount of the guidance in DfE's Governance Handbook and competency
framework for governance.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the CEQ. as accounting officer, for ensuring
financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in accordance
with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between The Learning Partnership
Academies Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the Board of
Trustaes any material weaknesses or breckdowns in internal control,

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees’ Report and in the Statement
of Trustees' Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees hos formally met 4 times during the year.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee Meetings aitended Qut of a possible

D wWootton, Chair of Trustees
A Pear

R Armstrong

K August

M Ashcroft

R McCiuney

J Clough

A Gregatbonks

S Kidwell

H Ranson

B T I - R L
B e

The board maintains effective oversight of the trust through full trust board meetings, supplemented by the work of
Finonce ond Staffing Committee, Governance Committee, and on Audit and Risk Committee. In total there were 15 board
or sub committee meetings held during the year.
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The Learning Portnership Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee}

Governance Statement (continued)

Governance (continuved)

The Audit and Risk Committee is aiso @ sub committee of the main Boord of Trustees. Its purpese is to oversee internal
and external scruting work, and to consider risk management within the trust to ensure the trust's internal control
environment is operating effectively and key risks to the orgenisation are identified and mitigated.

Attendance during the yeor at meetings was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Qut of a possible
A Greatbanks 2 3
M Ashcroft 3 3
R McCluney 3 3

Review of value for money

As aceounting officer, the CEO has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good value in the use of
public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider societal
outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The accounting officer considers how the academy trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money
during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where vaive for meney can be improved, including
the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The accounting officer for the academy trust has delivered improved
value for money during the year by

e Further consolidating central systems, processes and staffing;

¢ Reducing the number of senior executive leaders during the year;

+ Negotiating trust wide contracts on a range of goods and services;

« Establishing o robust scheme of financial delegation and procurement arrangements 1o ensure good value s
achieved on larger contracts and orders.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk 10 a reasonable level rother than to eliminate all risk of fallure
to achieve policies, uims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of
effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the
risks to the achievement of acadermuy trust policies, aims and cbjectives, to evaluate the likelihcod of those risks being
realised and the impact should they be realised, and to mancge them efficlently, effectively and economically. The
system of internal control has been in place in The Leorning Partnership Academies Trust for the year 1 September 2023
to 31 August 2024 and up to the dote of approval of the annucl report and financial statements.

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the academy trust is exposed together with the operating,
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of Trustees is of the
view that there is o formal ongeing process for identifying, evaluating end managing the ocademy trust's significant
risks tha: has been in place for the year 1 September 2023 1o 3% August 2024 and up fo the date of approval of the
onnual report and finoncial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of Trustees.
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The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Governance Statement (continved)

The risk and control fromework

The academy trust's system of internal financial control is based on ¢ framework of regulor management information
and administrative procedures including the segregation of dutles and a system of delegation ond accountability. In
particular, it includes:

. comprehensive budgeting and monitaring systems with an annual budget and pericdic financial reports which
are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees

. regulor reviews by the Finance and Staffing Committee of reports which indicate finoncial performance against
the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works ond expenditure programmes

. setting targets to measure financial and other performance

. clecrly defined purchosing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines

. identification and monagement of risks

The Boord of Trustees has decided to employ TIAA as internal auditor.

The Interna! cuditor's role includes giving advice on financial and other matters and performing a range of checks on
the academy trust's financiol systemns. In particular, the checks carried out in the current period included performance
monitoring, catering, business plonning, fraud and payments, business continuity and ICT disaster recovery, and risk
monagement.

On o termiy basis, the internal auditor reports to the Board of Trustees through the audit and risk comrnittee on the
operation of the systems of cantrol and on the discharge of the Boord of Trustees' financial responsibilities and
annually prepares a summary report to the committee outlining the areas reviewed, key findings, recormmendations
and conclusions to help the committee consider actions and ssess year on year progress,

The internal ouditor delivered their schedule of work as planned during the year. The 4 aregs reviewed gave rise to 4
assessments of reasonable assurance,

Review of effectiveness

As cocounting officer, the CEO has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control. During
the year in guestion the review has been informed by

. the work of the internat auditer;

. the work of the executive managers within the academy trust who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control framework.

. the work of the externgl auditors;
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The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Governance Statement (continued)

Review of effectiveneass (continued)

The cccounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal control
by the audit and risk committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system
is in place.

Conclusion

Based on the advice of the gudit and risk committee and the accounting officer, the board of trustees is of the opinion
that the academy trust hos an adequate and effective framework for governance, risk management and control

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees and signed on their behalf by:

- Signed by: DosuSigned by:
E Daw\, wawbS

AQCCD283E3AD438. BZ45C604382E4E6,
D wWootton D Thomas
Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer

Date:; 12 December 2024
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The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As cccounting officer of The Learmning Partnership Academies Trust, | have considered my responsibility to notify the
academy trust Board of Trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity,
impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding, including for estotes safety and
management, under the funding agreement between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As
part of my consideration | have hoad due regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2023, including
responsibilities for estates safety end management.

| confirm thot | and the academy trust Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of
¢l funds by the ccademy trust, or materiol non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the
academu trust's funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2023.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to
date. If any instances are identified ofter the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of Trustees and
ESFA.

DocuSigned by:

Daw\, Tfuwms

B245C604382E4E8, |
D Thomas

Accounting Officer
Date: 12 December 2024
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The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Statement of Trustees' responsibilities
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible
for preparing the Trustees’ Report and the financio! stotements in accordance with the Acodemies Accounts Direction
published by the Education ond Skills Funding Agencu, United Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial . Under compony law, the
Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
state of offalrs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its
income and expanditure, for that period. In preparing these finoncial statements, the Trustees are required to:

. select suitoble acceunting policies and then apply them consistentiy;

. observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to
2024,

* make judgemants and cccounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. stote whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been foliowed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explgined in the financiat statements;

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it Is Inappropriate to presume that the

charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company's transactions ond disciose with reasoncble accuracy at ony time the financial position of the
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companles Act 2006,
They ore also responsible for sufeguarding the assets of the charitabie company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the preventicn and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial
and ather controls, which conform with the reguirements beth of propriety ond of good financial management. They
are glso responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DFE have been applied for the purposes intended,

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporote and finoncial information included on
the charitoble company's website. Legislation In the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees and signed on its behalf by:
[Signed by:
ABCCO2E3E3A0438
D woaotton
Chalr of Trustees

Date: 12 December 2024
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The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Auditors’ Report on the financiol statements to the Members of The Learning Partnership
Academies Trust

Opinion

we have cudited the financial statements of The Learning Partnership Academies Trust (the ‘academy trust’) for the
year ended 31 August 2024 which comprise the Statement of Finoncial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of
Cosh Flows and the related notes, including o summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicabie low, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generaliy Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standord 102 'The Financlal Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Charities SORP 2079 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2023 to0 2024 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

D give a true and fair view of the stote of the acodemy trust’s offairs as at 31 August 2024 ond of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended;

. nave been properly orepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

. have been prepared in accerdance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Chorities SORP 2019

and the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.
Basis for opinion

we conducted our cudit In accardance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (15As (UK)) and applicable low.
QOur responsibilities under those standards ore further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of cur report. We are independent of the academy trust in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including the Financial
Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the cudit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
cur opinion,

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial staterments, we have concluded that the Trustees’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the academy trust's ability to continue as a
going concern for o period of ot least twelve months from when the financio! statements are quthorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.
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The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

independent Auditors’ Report on the financial statements to the Members of The Learning Partnership
Academies Trust (continued)

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and
our Auditors’ Report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information contained within the Annual Report.
Our apinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in cur report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our responsibitity is to read
the other information cnd, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be maoterially
misstated. if we identify such material inconsistencies or apporent matericl misstatements, we are required to determine
whether this gives rise to a material misstatement In the financiol stotements themselves. if, bosed on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact.

Wwe have nething to report in this regard.
Opinion on ather matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertoken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the Trustees’ Report including the Strotegic Report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
. the Trustees' Report and the Strotegic Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable Jegal

requirements.
Matters on which we are required to repert by exception

in the light of our knowledge ond understanding of the academy trust and its environment obtained in the course of the
cudit, we have not identified motericl misstatermnents in the Trustees' Report including the Strategic Report,

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you i, in our cpinion:

. adeguate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been recelved
from branches not visited by us; or

. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records ond returns; or

. certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Page 23



Docusign Envelope ID: 5B65203C-D372-4386-9DB1-4579C99AE183

The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

independent Auditors’ Report on the financial statements to the Members of The Learning Partnership
Academies Trust {continved)

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully In the Stotement of Trustees’ Responsibilities, the Trustees {(who are also the directors of the
academy trust for the purposes of compony iow) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial stotements that are free from material misstoternent, whether due to
fraud or error,

In preparing the finoncial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the acodemy trust's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, os applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the academy trust or to cease operations, or have no reglistic
clternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are 1o obiain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as o whole are free from
matericl misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors’ Report that includes our opinion.
Regsonabie assurance is a high leval of assuronce, but is not a guorantee that an qudit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK) will abways detect o materiol misstatement when it exists. Misstotements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could regsonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregutarities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with lows and regulations. We design procedures in line
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The
extent to which our procedures are capoble of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:

Our approach to identifulng and assessing the risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including froud
and non-compliance with iaws and regulations, was as follows:

. the senior statutory auditor ensured that the angagement team callectively hod the appropriate
competence, capabilities and skills to Identify or recognise non-complignce with applicable laws ond
regulations;

. we identified the laws and reguiations applicable to the company through discussions with directors and
other management, and from our commercio! knowledge and experience of the ocademy sector:

. we focused on specific laws ond reguiations which we considered may have ¢ direct material effect on

the financial statements or the operations of the academy trust, Including the financial reporting
legislotion, Companies Act 2006, taxation legislation, anti-bribery, employment, and environmental and
health and sofety legislation;

. we assessed the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations identified above through making
enquiries of management and Inspecting legal correspondence; and
. identified laws and regulations were communicoted within the cudit team regularly and the team

remained alert to instances of non-compliance throughout the audit.
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The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

independent Auditors’ Report on the financiol statements to the Members of The Learning Partnership
Academies Trust {continued)

We assessed the susceptibility of the ocademy trust’s financial statements to moterial misstaterment, including obtaining
an understanding of how fraud might occur, by:

. making engulries of management as 1o where they considered there was susceptibiiity to fraud, their
knowledge of actual, suspected ond alteged froud; and

. considering the internal controls in place to mitigate risks of fraud and non-compiliance with iaws and
reguiations.

To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, we:

. performed analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relgtionships;

. tested journc! eniries 1o identify unusual transactions;

. assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the occounting estimates set out
in note 2 were indicative of potential bias; and

. investigated the rationale behind significant or unusual tronsoctions.

In response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with iaws and regulations, we designed procedures which
included, but were not timited to:

. agreeing financial statement disclesures 1o underlying supporting documentation;

. reading the minutes of meetings of those charged with governance;

. enquiring of management as to actual and potential litigation and claims; and

. reviewing correspondence with HMRC, relevant regulators and the academy trust's legai advisors.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk thot we will not detect all irregularities, including those
leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This risk increases the
more that compliance with o law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions reflected in the financial
statements, as we will be less fikely to become oware of instances of non-complionce. The risk is also greater regarding
irregularities occurring due to froud rother than error, as fraud involves intentional conceaiment, forgery, collusion,
omission or misrepresentation.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Fingncicl Reporting
Council's website at: www.fre.orguk/auditersresponsibilities. This description forms part of cur Auditers’ Report.
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The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Auditors’ Report on the financial statements to the Members of The Learning Partnership
Academies Trust (continued)

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the academy trust's members, as o body, In accordance with Chapter 3 of Port 16 of the
Companies Act 2006, Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the academy trust's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors’ Repart and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the ccademy trust and its members,
as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Jonathan Dudley (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of
Dains Audit Limited

Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accouniants

Suite 2 Albion House

2 Etrurio Cffice Villoge
Forge Lane, Etruria
Stoke-on-Trent
ST15RQ

12 December 2024
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The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to The Learning Partnership
Academies Trust and the Education & Skills Funding Agency

In cccordonce with the terms of our engagement letter dated 1 December 2023 and further to the requirements of the
Education and Skiils Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024, we hove
carried out an engagermnent to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received
by The Learning Partnership Acadernies Trust during the year 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 have been applied
1o the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to The Learning Partnership Academies Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to The Learning Partnership Academies Trust
and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than The Learning Partnership Academies Trust and
ESEA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of The Learning Partnership Academies Trust's accounting officer and the
reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of The Learning Partnership Academies Trust's funding
agreement with the Secretory of State for Education dated 24 March 2011 and the Acodemy Trust Handbook, extant
from 1 September 2023, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed ond income received is applied for the purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engogement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical guidance and
are to obtain limited assuronce and report in occordance with our engogement letter and the requirements of the
Acadernies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024. We report to you whether anything has come to our aitention in carrying
out our work which suggests that in ali materiat respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1
Septemnber 2023 to 31 August 2024 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parlioment or that the financicl
transactions do not conform to the cuthorities which govern them.

Approgch

we conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting
Accountant of Acodemy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed o limited assurance engagement as defined in our
engagement lefter.

The objective of a limited assurcnce engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriote evidence to express a nagative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently
does nat encble us to obtain assurance that we would becorme aware of all significant matters that might be identified
in a reasenable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engogemeant includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
academy trust's income and expenditure.
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The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Compuany Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to The Learning Partnership
Academies Trust and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (continued)

Conclusion

in the course of our work, nothing has come to our aftention which suggest in all material respects the expenditure
disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 has not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them,

U VRN WP WA, . |

Dains Audit Limited

Suite 2 Albion House

2 Etruria Office Village
Forge Laneg, Etruria
Stoke-on-Trent
ST15RQ

Date: 12 December 2024
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The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Statement of financial activities (incorporating income and expenditure account)

For the Yeor Ended 31 August 2024

Income from:

Donations and capital
grants:

Transfer in from
existing academy trust

Transfer on conversion
to the academy trust

Other donations and
capitcl grants

Other trading activities
Investments
Charitable activities:

academy trust
educational operations

Teaching schools

Total income

Expenditure on:
Raising funds
Charitable activities

Teaching schools

Total expenditure

Net income/
(expenditure)

Transfers between funds

Net movement in funds
before other
recognised
gains/{losses) carried
forward

Note

|9, ]

30

30

20

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Tota
funds funds funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
1,388 515 17,383 19,286 -
175 (170) 1.333 1,338 -
77 - 1,988 2,066 3,795
1,22% - - 1,223 413
105 - - 105 a8
- 46,91 - 46,971 32,153
- 85 - 84 69
2,968 47,401 20,704 1,073 36518
1,773 - - 1,773 138
- 48,270 3,067 51,337 35,083
- 16 - 16 12
1,773 48,286 3,067 53,126 35,233
1,195 {885) 17,637 17,947 1,285
{2,103} 718 1,385 - -
(908) ¢en 19,022 17,947 1,285
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The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Statement of financiol activities (incorporating income and expenditure account) (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Net movement in funds
before other
recognised
(losses)/gains
brought forward (908) (167 19,022 17,947 1,285
Other recognised
gains/(losses):
Actuaricd gains on
defined benefit pension
schemes 28 - 1,011 - 1,011 2,312
Pension surplus not
recognised 28 - 178) - {178) -
Net movement in funds (908) 666 19,022 18,780 3,597
Reconciliation of funds:
Tota! funds brought .
forward 1,824 {2,292) 68,405 67,938 64341
Net movement in funds (908) 666 19,022 18,780 3597
Total funds carried
forwaord 916 (1,626) 87,427 86,717 67,938

The Statement of Financial Activities includes oll gains ond losses recognised in the year.

The notes on pages 34 to 79 form part of these financial statements,
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The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
Registered number: 07538467

Balance Sheet
As at 31 August 2024

2024 2023
Note £000 £00C
Fixed assets
Intongible assets 14 - 1
Tangible assets 15 86,953 67,835
86,953 67,836
Current assets
Stocks 6 86 36
Debtors 17 1,694 1,741
Cash at bank and in hand 3,935 5717
5,715 7,494
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 18 (4,016) (4,899)
Net current assets 1,699 2,595
Total assets less current liabilities 88,652 70,431
Creditors: amounts falling due after more then
one year 19 (38) -
Net assets excluding pension liability 88,614 70,431
Defined benefit pension scheme lability 28 {1,897) (2,494)
Total net assets 86,717 67937
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The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
Registered number: 07538467

Balance Sheet (continued)
As at 31 August 2024

2024 2023

Note £000 £000
Funds of the academy trust
Restricted funds:
Fixed osset funds 20 87,427 68,405
Restricted income funds 20 270 202
Restricted funds excluding pension asset 20 87,697 68,607
Pension reserve 20 (1,897} (2,494
Total restricted funds 20 85,800 66,113
Unrestricted income funds 20 917 1,824
Total funds 86,717 67,937

The financial statements on pages 29 to 79 were approved and authorised for issue by the Trustees and are signed on
their behalf, by:

[Sined y:
ASCCOIB3EIA0432.
D Wootton

Chair of Trustees
Date: 12 December 2024

The notes on pages 34 to 79 form part of these financial statements,

Page 32



Docusign Envelope 1D: 5B652D3C-D372-4306-9DB1-4579C99AE183

The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash {used in)/provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from finoncing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year

Cash and cash equivalents ot the beginning of the year

Cash and cash eqguivalents at the end of the year

The notes on pages 34 to 79 form part of these financicl statements

Note

22

24

23

25,26

2024 2023
£000 £000
(2,633) 1,589
868 (1,261)
an -
(1,782) 328
5,717 5,389
3,935 5,717
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(A Compuany Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

1. Accounting policies

11

1.2

13

A summary of the principal cccounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except
where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation unceriainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial stotements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historic cost convention in accerdance with the Finoncial Reporting Standard Applicable
in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of
Recommended Practice opplicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordonce with the Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the
Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by ESFA, the Chorities Act 2011 and the Companies Act
2006.

The Learning Partnership Academies Trust meets the definition of a public benrefit entity under FRS 102,
Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is cppropriate Le. whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significent doubt an the ability of the ocademy
frust to continue s @ going concern. The Trustees moke this assessment in respect of a period of at least
one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the
ocademy trust has odequate resourcas to continue in operationa| existence for the foreseeable future and
there are no material uncertainties about the acodemy trust's obility to continue as a going cencern, thus
they continue 1o adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financiol stotements.

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be megsured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on o receivable basis. The balance of income
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the
Balance Sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting eny performance-related conditions there
is not unconditional entitlement to the income ond its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as
deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before
income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which It is
receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as o liability.

Copital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital gronts are reflected in the Balance Sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Copital
grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the osset an which
they are expended,
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

1. Accounting policies (continued)

13

14

Income (continued)

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receiveble basis (where there are no performance-reloted conditions)
where the receipt is probabie and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income
Other income. including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the extent the
academy trust has provided the goods or services.

Transfer on conversion

where assets and liabilities are received by the ccademy trust on conversion to an academy, the
transferred assets are measured at fair value and recogrnised in the Bolance Sheet at the point when the
risks and rewards of ownership pass to the academy trust. An equal amount of income Is recognised as a
transfer on conversion within ‘Income from Donations and Capito! Grants' to the net assets received.

Transfer of existing academies into the academy trust

where assets and liabilities are received on the transfer of on existing academy into the academy trust, the
transferred assets are measured ot fair value and recognised in the Balance Sheet ot the point when the
risks and rewards of ownership pass 1o the academy trust. An equal amount of income is recognised for the
transfer of an existing academy into the academy trust within 'income from Donations and Capital Grants'
1o the net gssets acquired.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to o
third party, it is probeble thot a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlernent and the amount
of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is clessified by octivity. The costs of each activity
are made up of the totol of direct costs and shored costs, including support costs involved in undertaking
each activity. Direct costs cttributable to a single activity are aliocated directly to that activity. Shored costs
which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are not attributoble to o single activity
are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central stoff costs
are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges aliocated on the portion of the asset's

use,

Expenditure on raising funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the ocaderny trust to raise funds for its charitable purpeses and
inciudes costs of all fundroising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities
These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educational operotions, including support costs and costs

relating to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Yeor Ended 31 August 2024

1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.5

1.6

17

Taxation

The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Financa Act 2010
and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the academy trust is potentially exempt from toxation in respect of income or capital goins
recelved within cotegories covered by Part 11, chaptar 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of
tha Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, 1o the extent that such income or gains are opplied exclusively
to charitable purposes.

intangible gssets

Intangible assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised and recognised when future economic benefits are
proboble and the cost or volue of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are initiolly recognised at cost ond are subsequently measured at cost net of amortisation
cnd any provision for impairment.

Amortisation is provided on intangible ossets at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on o
straight-ling basis over its expected useful life.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:
Computer software - 5 years
Tangibie fixed assets

Assets costing £500 or more are capitclised os tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment,

where tanglble fixed assets have been acguired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government
or from the private sector, they are included in the Baolance Sheet ot cest ond deprecioted over their
expected useful economic life, Where there cre specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the
continued use of the asset, the related gronts are credited to o restricted fixed asset fund in the Stotement
of Financigl Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is
charged directly to the restricted fixed osset fund in the Stetement of Financial Activities. where tangible
fixed ossets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the
unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets cther than freehold land ond assets under construction,
at rates calculated 1o write off the cost of each asset on a stroight-line basis over its expectad useful life, as
follows:
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.7

1.8

19

110

Tangible fixed assets (continued)

Depreciation is provided on the following bases:

Freehold property - 50 years straight line
Long-term leasehold property - 50 years straight line
Leasehold land - 125 years straight line
Property improvement - 20 years straight line
Furniture and equipment - 5 years straight line
Computer equipment - 3 yeors siraight line

Assets in the course of construction are inciuded ot cost. Depreciction on these assets is not chorged until
they are brought into use and reclassified to freehold or ieasehold land and buildings.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or chenges in circumstances Indicate that
the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recovercble. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed
assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in
the Statement of Financial Activities.

Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount ofter any trade discount offered.
Prepoyments cre valued ot the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short maturity of
three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.

Liabilities

Liakilities are recognised when there is an obligation ot the Balance Sheet date as o resuft of a past event, it
is probable that o transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the
settlement con be estimated reliably, Liabllities ore recognised ot the amount that the academy trust
anticipotes it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced paymerts for the goods
or services it must provide.
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

m

112

Financial instruments

The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102, The financial assets and
financial liobilities of the academy trust and their megsurement bases are os follows:

Financial assets - trode and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 17. Prepayments are not finoncial instruments.

Cash ot bank is classified as a basic finagncial instrument and is measured gt face value.

Sinancial liobilities - trade creditors, gccruals and other creditors are financicl instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in notes 18 and 19. Taxation and social security ore not included in
the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred Income is not deemed to be a financial liobility, as
the cash settlement has aiready taken place and there is an obligotion to deliver services rather than cash
or ancther finoncial instrument.

Cperating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities on a stroight-line
basis over the lease term.
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(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Fingncial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

1. Accounting policies (continued)

113 Pensions

Retirement benefits 1o employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit schernes.

The TFS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over
employees’ working lives with the academy trust in such o way that the pension costis a substantially level
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government
Actuary on the basis of quadrennial voluations using a prospective unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded
multi-employer scheme with no underlying ossets to assign between emplogers. Consequently, the TPS is
treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the
period to which they relate.

The LGPS is o funded multi-employer scheme and the ossets ore held seporately from those of the
ocademy trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured ot fair value
and liobilities cre measured on an actuarial bosis using the projected unit credit method ond discounted at
a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high guality corporate bond of eguivalent term and
currency to the liabilities. The cctuarial valuations are cbtained at leost trienniclly and are updated at each
Balance Sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs
of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff
costs as incurred, Net interest on the net defined benefit ligbility/asset is also recognised in the Statement
of Financia! Activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit ebligation and interest income
on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the
period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on
the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised goins and
losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recogmised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

1. Accounting policies (continued)

114 Conversion to an academy trust

The conversion from a state maintgined school to an academy trust involved the tronsfer of identificble
assets and lichilities and the operation of the school for £NIL consideration. The substance of the transfer is
that of a gift and it has been accounted for on that basis as set out below.

The assets and liabilities transferred on conversion frarn Dove Bank Primary Schoo! to the academy trust
have been valued at their fair value. The fair value has been derived bosed on that of equivalent items. The
amounts have been recognised under the appropriate Balance Sheet categories, with @ corresponding
amount recognised in income from Donations and Capital Grants in the Statement of Financial Activities
and analysed under unrestricted funds, restricted genercl funds and restricted fixed asset funds.

Freehold lond and buildings

On the transfer date of 1 January 2024, the freehald rights to the lond and buildings have been transferred
from The Newcastie Co-Operative Trust. The valuation has been arrived ot on the basis of a valuation
carried out by The Learning Partnership Acodernies Trust and supported by the trustees of the academy
trust, who are not qualified valuers. The valuation was arrived at by reference to market evidence of
tronsactions for similar properties in the local area. The schoot site has been credited as o donation in the
Restricted Fixed Asset Fund column of the Statement of Financial Activities and included within tangible
fixed assets on the balance sheet.

Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) deficit

The obligation relating to the employees in the LGPS scheme that were tronsferred as part of the
conversion from the maintained schools were transferred to The Learning Partnership Academies Trust on 1
January 2024. The deficit on the Local Government Pension Scheme has been debited as a donation In the
Restricted General Funds column of the Statement of Financial Activities and included within the LGPS
liability on the balance sheet.

Cash

Cash balances at 1 Jounary 2024 in respect of the maintained schoo!l and schaol funds were trensferred to
The Leorning Partnership Acadernies Trust. These cash bolances have been credited as a donation in the
Staternent of Einancial Activities under the Unrestricted Fund column and included within the cash and bank
balonces on the balance sheet.

Further detgils of the tronsaction are set out in note 32,
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

115

116

Transfer of existing academies into the academy trust

The transfer of existing academies into the academy trust involved the transfer of identifiable assets and
liabilities and the operation of the schoo! for ENIL consideration. The substance of the transfer is that of a
gift and it has been accounted for on that basis as set out below.

The assets and liabilities transferred from The Learning for Life Partnerhsip to the academy trust have been
valued at their foir value. The fair value has been derived based on that of equivalent items. The amounts
hove been recognised under the appropriate Balance Sheet categories, with a corresponding amount
recognised in Income from Denations and Capital Grants in the Staternent of Financial Activittes and
analysed under unrestricted funds, restricted general funds and restricted fixed asset funds.

Further details of the transaction are set out in note 31,
Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable cbjects of the academy trust of the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by
the funders where the asset acguired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Investment income, gains and losses are allocated to the appropriate fund.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

2. Critical accounting estimates aond areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continualiy evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasencble under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual resukts. The estimates and assumptions thot
have a slignificant risk of causing & moteriol adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financio! yeor are discussed below.

Local government pension scheme

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on ¢ number of
factors that ore determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions,
which cre disciosed in note 28, will impact the carrying amount of the pension fiability. Furthermore a roll forward
coproach which projects results from the latest full octuarial valuation perfermed at 31 March 2022 has been
used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability ot 31 August 2024, Any differences between the figures
derived from the roll forword approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of
the pension liability.

in relation to the Cheshire pension fund, for academies formerly part of The Learning for Life Partnership, an
LGPS pension asset has been calculated. An entity shall recognise @ plan surplus os o defined benefit plan asset
only to the extent thot it is able to recover the surplus either through reduced contributions in the future or
through refunds from the plan. The trust is expected to porticipate in the LGPS indefinitely and therefore do not
believe there is any entitlement to a refund. The trust has alse instructed the pension actuary to caleulate an
asset ceiling report to colculote the estimated economic benefit availgble as a reduction in future contributions,
which shows a ENil value. Manogement have therefore not recognised the total pension surplus of £178,000 in
the financial statements, and the movement in the pension surplus of £178,000 has alse not been recognised in
the year.

Long term leasehold iond and buildings

The long term leasehold land and buildings within the accounts relctes to the academy premises which were
donated to the academy on conversion on a 125 year lease. The leasehold land and buildings were valued using
the local authority valuation. They are being depreciated in accordance with the depreciation policies set out in
note 1. No annual charge is made for the use of the land end buildings under the terms of the lease, as
management is not able to refiably measure open market rate.

Freehold iand and bvildings

The valuation of the freehold lond and builldings at Dove Bank Primary School, has been arrived at on the basis
of a valuotion carried out by The Learning Partnership Academies Trust and supported by the trustees of the
academy trust, who are not qualified valuers The valuation wos arrived at by reference to market evidence of
transactions for similar properties in the local area.
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3. Income from donations and capital grants
Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Donations
Transfer in from existing
academy trust 1,388 515 17,383 19,286 -
Transfer on conversion to the
academy trust 175 (70 1,333 1,338 -
Subtotai detailed disclosure 1,563 345 18,716 20,624 -
Donctions 77 - o 86 77
Capital grants - - 1979 1,979 3,718
Total 2024 1,640 345 20,704 22,689 3,795

Total 2023 79 - 3716 3795

l
|
i
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4. Funding for the academy trust's charitable activities

DfE/ESFA grants

General Annual Grant (GAG)

Other DFE/ESFA grants
Teachers pay and pension
Pupil Premium
Universatl Infant Free School Meals (UIFSM)
Mainstream schools additional grant (MSAG)
Supplementary grant
Other DIE/ESFA grants

Other Government grants
Special Educational Needs {SEN)

Local authority grants

Other income from the acaodemy trust's educational
operations

Total 2024

Total 2023

Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds
2024 2024 2023
£000 £000 £000
37980 37,980 26,704
449 449 116
1,588 1,588 1,049
353 353 12
1,170 1,170 370
520 590 713
620 620 457
42,750 42.750 29521
1832 1,832 1,014
1167 1,167 466
2,999 2,999 1480
1,222 1,222 1,352
46,971 46,971 32183
32153 32153
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5. income from other trading activities

Hire of facilities
Fre schoot or out of school club and other income

Sales income

Totai 2023

6. Investment income

Investment income

Unrestricted Total Total
funds funds funds
2024 2024 2023
£000 £000 £000
215 215 165
794 794 224
214 214 24
1,223 1,223 413
413 413
Unrestricted Total Total
funds funds funds
2024 2024 2023
£000 £000 £000
105 105 88
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7. Expenditure

Staff Costs Premises Other Total Total
2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Expenditure on fundraising
trading activities:
Direct costs 1,756 16 1 1,773 138
Educational operations
Direct costs 29484 1,888 5,292 36,664 27227
Allccated support costs 8677 - 5996 14,673 7856
Teaching school - 16 - 16 12
39,917 1,920 11,289 53.126 35,233
Total 2023 26,707 2,958 5568 35,235
8, Analysis of expenditure by activities
Activities
undertaken Support Total Totat
directly costs funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2023
£000 £000 £000 £000
Educational operations 36,664 14673 51,337 35,083
Total 2023 27,227 7856 35,083
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8. Analysis of expenditure by activities (contirued)

Analysis of support costs

Pension finonce costs

Staff costs

Technology costs

Staff development and cther staff costs
Maintenance of premises and special facilities
Cleaning and caretaking

Other premises costs

Energy

insurance

Security

Cotering

Other support costs

Legal and professional

Transport

Rates

Totol Totol
funds funds
2024 2023
£000 £000
138 191
8,677 3925
334 263
138 7
632 417
296 120
373 255
1,266 909
199 100
155 133
1,668 946
454 302
290 179
52 42

] 3
14,673 7,856
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9. Net income/(expenditure)

Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:

Operating lease rentals
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Operating fease sports pltch

Fees paid to auditors for:

- qudit

- aother services

10.  staff

a. Stoff costs and employee benefits

Staff costs during the year were as follows:

Wages and salories
Soclal security costs

Pension costs

Supply stoff costs
Apprenticeship levy

2024 2023
£000 £000
104 74
3,068 1,769
45 45
6 25

7 6
2024 2023
£000 £000
29,064 19,360
2,824 1,906
6,529 4454
38,417 25720
1,379 909
121 78
39,917 26,707
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10.

Staff (continued)
a. Staff costs and employee benefits (continued)

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

2024 2023
£000 £000
Staff restructuring costs 106 168
Severance payments 142 -
Redundancy costs 23 -
27 168
b. Severance payments
The academy trust paid 9 severance payments in the year, disclosed in the following bands:
2024
Ne.
£0 - £25,000 7
2

£25,001 - £50,000

. Special staff severance pagyments

During the year speciol severance payments totalled £142,022 (2023 £111,298). individually, the payments were:

£30,000, £30,000, £18,468, £18,377, £15,879, £11,952, £7,500, £5,000 and £4,846.

d. Staff numbers

The average number of persons empioyed by the academy trust during the year was as follows:

2024 2023

No. No.

Teachers 369 271
Administration and support 581 34
Management 57 46
1,007 658
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10. Staff (continued)
e. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000

WOs:
2024 2023
No. No.
In the bond £60,001 - £70,0C0 26 13
In the band £70,001 - £80,000 17 10
In the band £80,001 - £30,000 2 3
In the band £90,001 - £100,000 4 2
In the bang £100,001 - £118,000 2 -
In the band £110,001 - £120,000 - 1

in the band £160,001 - £170,000 1 1

f. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the Trustees and the senior monagement team
os listed on page 1. The total amount of key management personnel benefits (including employer pension
contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their
services to the academy trust was £424,221 (2023 - £349,530).
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1. Centrol services

The acaderny trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

. Chief Executive Officer

. Financial services

. Management information systems
. Payroll services

. Professicnal services

. Cthers as arising

The academy trust charges for these services on the following basis:
5% of GAG income

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

2024 2023

£000 £060
Congleton High School m 365
The Oaks Academy 234 190
Biack Firs Primmary School 72 68
Castle Primary Schoof 25 24
Knutsford Academy 517 348
Cheshire Studic Schooi 42 37
Sir williom Stanier School n 236
Egerton Primary Scheol 48 42
Crewe Engineering and Design UTC 90 88
Dove Bank Primary Scheol 20 -
Leighton Academy 239 -
Shavingten Primary 244 -
Wheelock Primary 196 -
wistaston Church Lane Acodemy 239 -
Daven Primary 110 -
Total 2,588 1,398
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Docusign Envelope ID; 5B852D3C-D372-4396-9DB1-4579C99AE 183

The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

12.

13,

14.

Trustees' remuneration and expenses
During the year, no Trustees received any remuneration or other benefits (2023 - £NIL).

During the year ended 31 August 2024, no Trustee expenses have been incurred (2023 - £NIL).

Trustees' and Officers' insurance

The academy trust has opted into the Department for Education’s risk protection orrangement (RPA}, on
alternctive to insurance where the UK government funds cover losses that arise. The scheme protects Trustees
and officers from cloims arising from negligent octs, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business,
and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the Trustees and officers indemnity element

from the overcll cost of the RPA mambership.

intangible assets

Cost
At 1 September 2023

At 31 August 2024

Amortisation
At 1 September 2023
Cherge for the year

At 31 August 2024

Net book value

At 31 August 2024

At 31 August 2023

Computer
software
£000
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Docusign Envelope 1D: 5B552D3C-D372-4396-0DB1-4579C99AE 183

The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

16.  Stocks
Stock
17. Dpebtors

Due within one year

Trade debtors

Qther debtors

Prepayments and accrued income

VAT recoverable

18. Creditors: Amounts fatling due within one year

Cther loons

Trade creditors

Other taxaticn ond social security
Other creditors

Accruals and deferred income

2024 2023
£000 £000
86 36
2024 2023
£000 £000
127 211
24 44
1,139 1131
404 355
1,694 1.741
2024 2023
£000 £000
17 -
598 2,041
654 467
1,18 1,284
1,629 1107
4,016 4,899
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Docusign Envelope ID: 5865203C-D372-4396-9DB1-4579C98AE183

The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

2024 2023

£000 E£000
Deferred income at 1 September 2023 442 323
Resources deferred during the year 720 442
Amounts released from previous periods (442) (323)

720 442
Included with deferred income ot the year end is UIFSM grant income, local autharity income and other similar
amounts.

Included within other loans are Solix loans granted to Leighton Academy, Wistaston Church Lane Academy ond
Daven Primary. The total amount repaycble under the loans is £16,600 per annum and these are non-interest
bearing.

19. Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

2024 2023
£000 £000
Cther loans 38 -

Included within other loans are Solix loans granted to Leighton Academy, Wistasten Church Lane Academy and
Daven Primary. The total amount repayoble under the loans is £16,600 per annum and these are non-interest
begring.
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Docusign Envelope ID: 5B65203C-D372-4396-9DB1-4573C39AE183

The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Fingnciol Stotements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

20. Statement of funds

Balance ot 1
September Transfers Gains/ Balance at 31
2023 Income  Expenditure in/out (Losses) August 2024
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Unrestricted
funds
General Funds -
alt funds 1,824 2,96% (1,773) (2,103) - 917
Restricted
general funds
General Annual
Grant (GAG) - 37,980 (38,698) 718 - -
Teachers Pay - 449 (449) - - -
Pupil Premium - 1,588 (1,588) - - -
Mainstream
schools
additional grant
(MSAG) - 1170 (1.170) - - -
Other DfE/ESFA
Graonts - 1,563 (1,563) - - -
L.ocal authority
grants - 1,167 (1,167) - - -
SEN funding - 1,832 (1,832) - - -
Other restricted
income - 1,222 (1,222) - - -
Teaching school
hub 202 84 (16) - - 270
Transfer from
existing MAT - 669 (669) - - -
Pension reserve (2,4594) (324) 88 - 833 (1,897)
(2,292} 47,400 (48,286) 718 833 (1,627)
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Docusign Envelope ID: 5B652D3C-D372-4396-9DB1-4570C90AE183

The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarcntee)

Notes to the Fingncial Stotements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

20.  Statement of funds (continued)

Balance at 1
September Transfers Gains/ Bolance ot 31
2023 Income  Expenditure in/out {Losses) August 2024
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Restricted fixed
asset funds
Transfer on
conversion 1 1,331 (1,123 - - 919
Transfers from
existing MATs 47,599 17,385 {1,229) - - 63,755
DfE group capital
grants 18,078 1,988 (580} - - 19,486
Capital
expenditure
from GAG 2.017 - {135) - . 1,882
Capital
expenditure
from
Unrestricted - - . 1,385 - 1,385
68,405 20,704 (3,067} 1,385 - 87,427
Totol Restricted
funds 66,113 68,104 (51,353) 2,103 833 85,300
Total funds 67,937 71,073 (53,126) - 833 86,717

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as foliows:

Unrestricted funds
This fund represents those resources which may be used towards meeting ony of the charitable objects of the
multi-academy trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted general funds
The restricted general funds represents grants received for the academy trust's operctional activities and
development, restricted trip income and other restricted income.

Pension reserve
The pensicn reserve represents the academy trust's share of the pension liability arising on the LGPS pension
fund.
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Docusign Envelope ID: 5B652D3C-D372-4366-8DB1-4579C99AE 183

The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

20. Statement of funds (continued)

Restricted fixed asset fund
The restricted fixed asset fund refates to grant funding received from the ESFA to carry out works of a capital
nature, capital expenditure from GAG, the donation of the assets from the local authority on conversion and the

donation of assets from qcademies joining the trust from existing trusts.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the academy trust was not subject to a limit en the
amount of GAG It could carry forward at 31 August 2024.
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Docusign Envelope ID: 5B652D3C-D372-4396-90B1-4579C80AE 183

The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

20,

Statement of funds (continved)

Comperative informotion in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

Unrestricted
funds

General Funds

Restricted
general funds

General Annual

Grant {(GAG)
Teachers Pay
Pupit Premium
UIFSM

Other DFE/ESFA
Grants

MSAG

Supplementary
grant

Local guthority
grants

SEN funding

Other restricted
income

Teaching school
hub

Pension reserve

Bolance ot Balance at
1September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2022 Income  Expenditure in/out (Losses) 2023
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
1,601 580 (138) (219 - 1824

1779 26,704 (27,408) 1.075) - -

- 16 (116) - - -

- 1,049 {1,049) - - -

- 12 N2y - - -

- 458 (458) - - -

- 370 G70) - - -

- 3 (N3) - - -

- 466 (466) - - "

- 1,014 {1.014) - - -

- 1,350 {1,150} - - -
145 &9 12 - - 202
{4.347) - (459) - 2312 (2,494)
(2423) 32,221 {33,327) (1,07%) 2312 (2.292)
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Docusign Envelope ID: 5B652D3C-D372-4396-0DB1-4579C99AE183

‘The Learning Partnership Acudemies Trust

{A Company Limited by Guorantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

20. Statement of funds (continued)

Balance ot Balance ot
1September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2022 Income Expenditure in/out (L.osses) 2023
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Restricted fixed
asset funds
Transfer on
conversion 1,725 - (1,014) - - m
Transfers from
existing MATs 47,638 - (39) - - 47,559
OfE group capital
grants 14,942 3,716 (580) - - 18,078
Capital
expenditure
from GAG 858 - (135) 1,294 - 2.017
65,163 3,716 (1,768) 1,294 - 68,405
Total Restricted
funds 62,740 35,937 (35,095} 219 2312 66,113
Total funds 64,341 36,517 (35,233 - 2312 67,937
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i ST, ————————

T ——— i — ————————  Miiiia e
e EAILaE:  i———————

Paoge 61



Deocusign Envelope 1D: 5B652D3C-D372-4396-90B1-4570CO0AE183

The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

20.  Stotement of funds (continued)
Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances ot 31 August 2024 were allocated as follows:

Black Firs Primary School

Castle Primary School

Cheshire Studio School
Congleton High School

Egerton Primary School
Knutsferd Academy

Sir Williom Stanter School

The Qaks Academy

Crewe Engineering & Design UTC
Leighton Academy

wistaston Church Lane Academy
Shavington Primary School
wheelock Primary School

Daven Primary School

Dove Bank Primary School

Central services

Tota! befare fixed asset funds and pension raserve
Restricted fixed asset fund

Pension reserve

Total

2024 2023
£000 £000
(50) 90
9 40
210 157
(276) 156
(50) 42
1,851 2,052
(880) 277
(103) 42
(345) (215)
418 .
{35} -
m -
135 -
77 -
17 -
(56) (67
1187 2,026
87,427 68405
(1,897) (2,494)
86,717 67.937
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Docusign Envelope ID: 5B652D3C-D372-4396-9DB1-4579CG8AE183

The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

20.

Statement of funds {(continued)

The following ccademies are carrying a net deficit on their portion of the funds as follows:

Deficit

£000

Sir william Stanier School (880)
Crewe Engineering & Design UTC {345)
Biack Firs Primary School (50)
Congleton High School (276)
Egerton Primary School {(50)
The Ocks Academy (103)
Wistaston Church Lane Academy (35)

Central services (56)

The academy trust is taking the following acticn to return the academies to surplus:

Sir William Stanier School sow significant staffing and capital investrent this year, to drive school improvement
initictives. Pupil numbers are rising, and further steps are being taken to ensure staffing structures and
deployment are both effective and efficient moving forward, to support the school in the medium to long term.

The Oaks Academy ond Crewe Engineering & Design UTC cre both experiencing the effects of lagged funding
lssues, as both continue to increase their pupil numbers, the funding for this increose is received a year In
arresrs. Once both schools secure a stable roll year to year, which is forecast in 12-18 months, these lagged
issues will be resolved, and both will generate ongoing surplus positions.

Black Firs Primary Schoot and Egerton Primary School hove both undertoken restructuring exercises during
202324 which will ensure the ongoing sustainsbility of these schools. This generated unbudgeted additionad in
year costs, but these will not be repeated in future years.

Congleton High School has suffered from  dip in year 7 and post-16 numbers in 2022, which impacted on the
202324 year. However the school is pro-actively working ta market Hself to prospective students ot both entry
points, and current forecast numbers suggest stronger pupil numbers moving forward, which will address the
short term budgetary issues experienced in year.

Wwistaston Church Lone Academy reserves have been invested in o nursery provision which is proving highly
attractive and also profitable, and the schools is expected to quickly address the small net deficit incurred in

order 1o establish this provision.
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Docusign Envelope ID: 5B652D3C-D372-4396-90B1-4579C99AE183

The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guaronteg)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

20.

Statement of funds (continued)

Centrol Services delivered o modest deficit due to additiona! investments in the first year of the trust’'s merged
operation to develop systems, processes, and engage with external perties to baseline ond benchmark

operational and educational positions. Such costs are not forecast to be repeated in future.

Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the yeor was as follows:

Biack Firs Primary
School

Castle Primory
School

Cheshire Studio
School

Congleton High
School

Egerton Primary
School

Knutsford
Academy

Sir William Stanier
Scheot

The Oaks
Academy

Crewe
Engineering &
Design UTC

Leighton
Academy

Shavington
Primary

wheelock

Primary

Wistaston Church
Lane Acodemy

Teaching and

educational Other
support staff support staff
costs costs

£000 £000

1.278 323

367 155

544 82

5,666 1.09C

735 240

5,483 844

4,00 802

3,216 599

1316 339

1,615 537

1,649 437

1322 274

1,346 365

Educational
supplies
£000

60

18

137

38

143

142

175

105

84

77

63

72

Other costs
exciuding
depreciation
£000

385

142

168

1973

260

1,345

1,716

1052

596

473

507

444

567

Total
2024
£000

2,046

682

797

8,866

1,273

7,816

6,661

5,042

2,356

2,709

2,670

2,103

2,350

Total
2023
£000

1,730

608

7

7,807

1167

7154

5910

4194

1,961
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Docusign Envelope 1D: 5B652D3C-0372-4396-9DB1-4575C90AE183

The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

20. Statement of funds (continued)

Teaching and

educationadl Other Other costs
support staff support stoff  Educational exciuding Total Total
costs costs supplies depreciation 2024 2023
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Dove Bank
Primary School 403 202 13 2 739 -
Daven Primary
School 696 261 58 248 1,263 -
Central services 73 2127 26 548 2,774 1,758
Academy trust 29,710 8,677 1214 10,546 50,147 33,006
21, Analysis of net assets between funds
Analusis of net assets between funds - current period
Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2024
£000 £000 £000 £000
Tangible fixed assets - - 86,953 86,953
Current assets 917 4,323 474 5.714
Creditors due within one year - (4,016) - (4,016)
Creditors due in more than one year - (38) - (38)
Provisions for liabilities and charges - (1.897) - (1,897)
Total 917 (1,628) 87427 86,716
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Docusign Envelope [D: 5B652D3C-D372-4396-9DB1-4579C00AE183

The Learning Partnership Acodemies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

21. Analysis of net assets between funds (continved)

Analysis of net assets between funds - prior period

Tongible fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets
Current assets

Creditors due within one year

Provisions for fiabitities and charges

Total

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed assetl Total
funds funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023 2023
£000 £000 £060 £000
- - 67835 67835
- - 1 1
1,824 5100 569 7493
- (4.899) - (4,899)
- (2,494) - {2,494)
1,824 (2.293) 68,405 67,936
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Docusign Envelope 1D: 5B652D3C-D372-4396-8DB1-4579CB9AE183

The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Stotements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

22.

23,

Reconciliation of net income to net cash flow from operating activities

Net income for the pericd (as per Statement of Financial Activities)

Adjustments for:
Depreciction
Capital grants from DEE and other capital income

interest receivable

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable

Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost

increase in stocks

Decrease/(increase) in debtors

(Decrease)/increase in creditors

Transfer inte Academy Trust - Fixed assets

Transfer into Academy Trust - Pension deficit

Transfer into Academy Trust - Cash and cash eqguivalents
Transfer into Academy Trust - Loan

Transfer into Academy Trust - Net current (asset)/licbilities

Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayments of borrowing

Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities

2024 2023
£000 £000
17,947 1,285
3,068 1,769
(1,998) (3.718)
(105) -
(226) 268
138 191
{50) G8)
47 (297)
(900) 2127
(18,510) -
324 -
(2,457) -
72 -
17 -
(2.633) 1589
2024 2023
£000 £000
an -
Qan -
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Docusign Envelope 1D: §B652D3C-D372-4396-9DB1-4579C99AE183

The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Compuany Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

24.  Cash flows from investing activities

2024 2023
£000 £000
Dividends, interest and rents from investments 105 -
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (3,673) (5,162)
Capital grants from DfE Group 1,979 3,901
Cash acquired on transfer of academies into the trust 2,457 -
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities 868 {1,261)
25.  Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

2024 2023

£000 £000

Cash in hand and ot bank 3,935 5717
Total cash ond cash equivalents 3,935 5717

26.  Anaclysis of changes in net debt
At1 Transfer into

September Academy At 31 August

2023 Cash flows Trust 2024

£000 £000 £000 £000

Cash at bank ond in hand 5,717 (4,239) 2,457 3,935
Debt due within 1 year " - an an
Debt due after 1 year - 17 (55) (38)
5,17 (4,222 2,385 3,880

Page 68



Docusign Envelope ID: 5B652D3C-D372-4356-0DB1-4579C98AE 183

The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

27.

28.

Capital commitments

2024 2023
£000 £000
Contracted for but not provided in these financial statements
Congleton High School project - 154
Wheelock Primary School Exponsion 493 -
Leighton Academy Extension 236 -

729 154

Pension commitments

The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
England ond wales (TPS) for ccademic and related staff; and the Locatl Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for
non-teaching staff, which is managed by Cheshire West and Chester Council for acodemies based in Cheshire
and Staffordshire County Council for the academies based in Staffordshire. Both are multi-employer defined
benefit schemnes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related 1o the period ended 31 Morch 2020 and of the LGPS 31 March
2022.

Contributions amounting to £816,000 were payable to the schemes ot 31 August 2024 (2023 - £485,000) and are
included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in academies. All
teachers have the option to opt-cut of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS Is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a percentage
of salary - these contributions are credited 1o the Exchequer. Retirement and other pensicn benefits are poid by
public funds provided by Parliament.
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Docusign Envelope 1£: 5B652D3C-D372-4396-9DB1-4573C99AE 183

The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financiol Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

28.

Pension commitments (continued)
Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using nermal actuarial principles, conducts ¢ formal actuarial review of the TPS In
accordaence with the Public Service Pensions {Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by
MM Treasury every 4 years, The aim of the review is to ensure scheme costs are recognised and managed
appropriately and the review specifies the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme voluations are
dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other facters. The latest
actuarial volugtion of the TPS was carried out a5 gt 31 March 2020. The valuation report was published by the
Department for Education on 27 October 2023, with the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, applying a notional investment
return based on 1.7% above the rate of CPL The key elernents of the valuation outcome are:

. Employer contribution rates set ot 28.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration levy). This
is an increose of 5% in employer contributions and the cost control result is such that no change in
member benefits is needed.

. Total scheme Hobllities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £262.000 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £222,200 million, giving a netienal
past service deficit of £39,800 million.

The result of this valuation will be implemented from 1 April 2024.The next valuation result is due to
be implemented from 1 April 2028.

The iatest actuarial TPS valuation results, as at 31 March 2020, were released in October 2023. The revised
employer contribution rate, arising from this valuation, is due to be implemented from 1 April 2024,

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £4,686,000 (2023 - £2,726,000).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensiens website
(https//www teacherspensions.couk/news/employers/2019/04/teachers-pensions-valuation-report.ospx}.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The academy
trust has accountad for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The academy
trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.
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The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

28.

Pension commitments {continuved)
Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGES is ¢ funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered
funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2024 was £2,510,000 (2023 - £1.460,000), of
which employer's contributions totalled £1,971,000 (2023 - £1,150,000) and employees’ contributions totatled
£539 000 (2023 - £310.000). The agreed contribution rates for future yeors are between 18.9 and 24.2 per cent for
empioyers and between 5.5 to 125 per cent for employees.

As described in note 2 the LGPS obligation relates to the employees of the academy trust, who were the
employees transferred as part of the conversion from the maintained schoo! and new employees who were
eligible to, ond did, join the Scheme in the year. The obligation in respect of employees who transferred en
conversion represents their cumulative service at both the predecessor school and the acederny trust at the
balance sheet date.

Parliament hos ogreed, at the request of the Secretary of Stote for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of
academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the Department for
Education. The guarantee came inte force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the Department for Education
reaffirmed its commitment to the guarantee, with o parliamentary minute published on GOV.UK,

Principal actuarial assumptions

Cheshire Pension Fund

2024 2023

% %

Rate of increase in salaries 3.35 370
Rate of incraase for pensions in payment/inflation 2,65 3.00
Discount rate for scheme fabilities 5.00 520
Inflation assumption (CPD 2.65 3.00
Commutation of pensions to lump sumns 65.0 65.0
Commutation of pensions to lump sums - post-April 2008 service 65.0 650
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28.

Pension commitments (continued)

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient alowance for future improvements In mortality rates. The
assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are;

2024 2023
Years Years
Retiring today
Males 20.2 21.0
Femncles 238 216
Retiring in 20 years
Males 214 20.2
Femuales 25.4 259
Staffordshire Pension Fund
2024 2023
% %
Rate of increase in salaries 315 350
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 2.65 3.00
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 5.00 520
Inflgtion assurmption (CP} 2.65 3.00
Commutation of pensions to lump sums 65.0 65.0
Commutation of pensions to lump sums - post-April 2008 service 65.0 65.0

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The
assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are!

2024 2023
Years Yeors
Retiring today
Males 20.8 209
Females 24.7 248
Retiring in 20 years
Males 211 212

Females 25.1 251
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28. Pension commitments (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

Cheshire Pension Fund

Discount rate +0.1%

Discount rate -0.1%

Mortality ossumption - 1 year increase
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease
CFl rate +0.1%

CPl rate -0.1%

Salary increase rate +0.1%

Salary increase rate -0.1%

Staffordshire Pension Fund

Discount rate +0.1%

Discount rate -0.1%

Mortality assumption - 1year increose
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease
CPlrote +6.1%

CPlrote -01%

Salary increase rote +0.1%

Salary increase rate -01%

2024
£000
(600)
600
119
(1L19)
596
(596)
17
a7

2024
£000
@7
27
49
(49)
26
(26)

@

2023
£000

(385)
385
756

(756)

2023
£000

&)

(8

)

m
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28,

Pension commitments (continved)
Share of scheme assets

The acaderny trust's share of the assets in the scheme wos:

Equities
Gilts
Corporate bonds

Property

Total market value of assets

The actual return on scheme assets was £2,583,000 (2023 - £353,415).

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financiol Activities are as follows:

Current service cost
Interest income

Interest cost

Total amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities

At 31 August At 31 August
2024 2023
£000 £000

14,645 8,803
2,012 5,545
3,520 2,348

283 170
27,460 16,866
2024 2023
£000 £000

(1,745} {1.418)

1,251 7
(1,389) (908)
(1,883) (1,609)
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28. Pension commitments (continued)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit ebligations were as follows:

At 1 September

On conversion to the trust

Transferred in on existing academies joining the trust
Current service cost

interest cost

Employee contributions

Actuarial gains

Benefits paid

At 31 August

Changes in the fair value of the academy trust's share of scheme assets were as follows:

At 1September

On conversion to the trust

Transferred in on existing academies joining the trust
Interest income

Actuerial gains/{losses)

Employer contributions

Employee contributions

Benefits paid

At 31 August

2024 2023
£000 £000
19,360 20,734
630 .
6,071 -
1,745 1,418
1,389 908
539 310
(6) (3.553)
(549) (457)
29,179 19,360
2024 2023
£000 £000
16,866 16,387
460 .
5,917 -
1,251 717
1,005 (1,247
1,971 1150
539 310
(549) (457)
27,460 16,866

As detailed in note 2, The Learning For Life Partnership pension asset of £178,000 (2023- £nil) has not been
recoanisad in the financial statements ond the movement in surplus of £178,00G (2023 - £nil) has also not been

recognised during the year.
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29,

30.

Operating lease commitments

At 31 August 2024 the ocaderny trust had commitments to moke future minimum lease pagments under non-

canceliable operating leases as foliows:

Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year and net loter than 5 years

Teaching schoo! trading gccount

ncome

Direct income

Total income

Expenditure

Direct expenditure
Otner direct costs

Total expenditure

Surplus from all sources

Teaching school balances at 1 September 2023

Teaching school balances at 31 August 2024

2024 2023

£000 £000

88 87

181 203

269 290

2024 2024 2023 2023

£000 £000 £000 £000
84 69

84 69
16 12

16 12

68 57

202 145

270 202

Page 76



Docusign Envelope ID: 5B652D3C-D372-4396-0DB1.4579C89AE183

The Learning Partnership Academies Trust

{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

31 Transfer of existing academies into the academy trust

The Learning for Life Partnership

Tangibfe fixed assets
Long-term leasehold property
Furniture and equipment
Computer equipment

Current assets

Stocks

Debtors due after one year

Cash at bank and in hand

Liabilities

Creditors due within one year
Creditors due after one year
Pensions

Pensions - pension scheme assets

Pensions - pension scheme liabilities

Net assets

Value
reported by
transferring Transfer in
trust recognised
£000 £000
16,771 16,771
319 319
92 92
32 32
1,024 1,024
2,282 2,282
(1,018) (1,018)
62) (62)
5917 5,917
(6,071} (6,071)
19,286 19,286

The figures above have been trunsferred into the trust from The Learning Fer Life Partnership (Compony
Registered Number 09675372) on 1 September 2023, The values represent the transfer of the 5 academies with

the The Learning For Life Partnership plus the central services fund.
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32.  Conversion to an academy trust

On 1 Jenuary 2024 Dove Bank Primary School converted to academy trust status under the Academies Act 2010
and all the operations ond assets ond liabilities were tronsferred to The Learning Partnership Academies Trust
from Staffordshire County Council for £Nil consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for os a combination that is in substance a gift. The ossets and licbilities
transferred were valued ot their fair value and recognised in the Balance Sheet under the appropricte heading
with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain in the Statement of Financial Activities as income
from Denations and Capital Grants - transfer frorm local authority on conversion,

The following table sets out the falr values of the identifiable assets and liobilities transferred and on analysis of
their recognition in the Statement of Financial Activities,

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Totaol
funds funds funds funds
£000 £000 £000 £000
Tangible fixed qassets
Freehold lond and buildings - - 133 1,351
Other tangible fixed assets - - - -
Current assets
Cash - representing budget surplus on LA
funds 161 - 2 163
Cash - representing budget surplus on
other school funds 14 “ - 14
Pensions
Pensions - pension scheme assets - 460 - 460
Pensions - pension scheme liabllities - (630) - (630)
Net assets/(liabilities) 175 (178 1,333 1,338
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32.

35,

34,

Conversion to an academy trust (continved)

The above net assets include £177,000 thot were transferred as cash.

The freehold land ond buildings in relation to Dove Bank Primary School were transferred to The Learning
Partnership Academies Trust from The Newcastle Co-Operative Trust for £nil consideration. The Newcastle Co-
Operative Trust had praviously received the freehoid land and tuildings from Staffordshire County Coundil in
anticipation of a conversicn of the school into the Trust. The basis for this valuation is detailed in the accounting
policies note 1.

The LGPS pension deficit represents the net position at 1 January 2024 in respect of employees of the
maintained schoof and have transferred to the multi academy trust. The basis for this valuation is detailed In
note 1and note 28.

Related party transoctions

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from local
public and private sector organisations, transactions may take ploce with orgonisations in which the trustees
have an interest. All tronsactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with the
requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made on or after
1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the academy trust’s financiat regulations and
normal procurement procedures relating to connected and relateg party transactions.

Ne related party transactions took place in the period of account, other than certaln trustees’ remuneration ond
expenses already disclosed in note 12.

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company In the event of it
being wound up while he/she is 0 member, or within ohe year after he/she ceases to be @ member, such amount
as moy be reguired, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be o
member.
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